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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
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In the Matter of     ) 
       ) Docket No. 52-037-COL  
UNION ELECTRIC COMPANY d/b/a AmerenUE )    
       )  
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       ) 
(Combined License)     ) 
 

AmerenUE’s Answer To The Public Service Commission Of The State Of Missouri’s 
Petition For Leave To Intervene As An Interested State, Or,  
In the Alternative, Petition For Discretionary Intervention 

 

I. Introduction 

Union Electric Company d/b/a AmerenUE (“AmerenUE”) hereby submits its answer 

(“Answer”) to the Petition For Leave To Intervene As An Interested State, Or, In The 

Alternative, Petition For Discretionary Intervention by the Public Service Commission of the 

State of Missouri (“Petition”) filed in this proceeding on April 6, 2009.  In its Petition, the Public 

Service Commission of the State of Missouri (“MoPSC”) seeks to intervene in this proceeding as 

an interested State, or in the alternative, seeks discretionary intervention, and requests that the 

Nuclear Regulatory Commission (“NRC” or “Commission”) conduct a hearing regarding 

AmerenUE’s Application for a combined construction permit and operating license (“COL” or 

“combined license”) for new Unit 2 (“Callaway 2”) at the Callaway Plant site.  AmerenUE 

supports MoPSC’s admission to this proceeding as an interested State under 10 C.F.R. § 

2.315(c).  MoPSC does not meet the requirements, however, for discretionary intervention.  



II. Current Status Of The Project  

This section is in response to the April 27, 2009 Memorandum and Order (Initial 

Prehearing Order) issued by the Atomic Safety and Licensing Board (at 5). This proceeding 

involves an application, submitted by AmerenUE on July 24, 2008, for a combined license to 

construct and operate an AREVA U.S. Evolutionary Power Reactor (“U.S. EPR”) pressurized 

water reactor at Callaway (the “Application” or “COLA”).1  Callaway is located in Callaway 

County, Missouri near Fulton, Missouri. Callaway is the site of the currently operating Callaway 

Power Plant.  

In early 2009, legislation was proposed to revise existing Missouri law which prevents 

Missouri investor-owned utilities from recovering any plant development costs, including 

financing costs, until an energy plant is operating. This proposed legislation was entitled the 

“Missouri Clean and Renewable Energy Construction Act,” and would have allowed regulators 

to authorize funding mechanisms for construction of clean energy plants in Missouri – including 

Callaway 2. On April 23, 2009, senior management of AmerenUE announced that they had 

asked the legislative sponsors to withdraw the bills from consideration by the Missouri General 

Assembly. AmerenUE believed that pursuing the legislation being considered in the Missouri 

Senate in its current form would not give AmerenUE the financial certainty needed to complete 

the project. As a result, AmerenUE announced that it was suspending its efforts to build a new 

nuclear unit in Missouri. A copy of the press release is attached to this Answer as Attachment 1. 

                                                 
1  Callaway Plant Unit 2 Combined License Application (Rev. 0, July 24, 2008), transmittal letter available at 

ADAMS Accession No. ML082140630.  On February 25, 2009, AmerenUE filed Rev. 1 to the Application.  
Callaway Plant Unit 2 Combined License Application (Rev. 1, February 25, 2009) transmittal letter available at 
ADAMS Accession No. ML090710444.  The entire Application (Rev. 1 and Rev. 0) is available at 
http://www.nrc.gov/reactors/new-reactors/col/callaway.html.    
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However, as set forth in a letter dated April 28, 2009 to the NRC Staff, AmerenUE 

requested that current activities associated with the NRC Staff’s technical review of the 

Application be continued as currently scheduled while AmerenUE reviews its options associated 

with the Application. AmerenUE already has commenced that review, but believes that 

immediately placing the review of the Application on hold could negatively impact certain of 

AmerenUE’s options under consideration. AmerenUE is sensitive to the fact that continuation of 

the review of the COLA impacts the NRC resources, and consequently will keep the Board, the 

Staff, the Commission, and any admitted intervenors informed of the status of AmerenUE’s 

internal review. A copy of the letter is attached to this Answer as Attachment 2.  

Notwithstanding AmerenUE’s request that the current activities associated with the NRC 

Staff’s review of the Application be continued as currently scheduled, AmerenUE recognizes 

that the financial qualifications of AmerenUE cannot currently be reviewed by the NRC Staff. 

With AmerenUE’s request that the sponsors of the legislation withdraw the bills from 

consideration, the premise of the financial qualifications analysis in the Application is no longer 

correct. Therefore, it is AmerenUE's understanding that the NRC Staff’s review of its financial 

qualifications will not (and cannot) continue at this time. 

III. Background   

The NRC Staff conducted a sufficiency review of the Application and, finding it 

acceptable for docketing, docketed the Application on December 12, 2008.  73 Fed. Reg. 77,078 

(Dec. 18, 2008).  On February 4, 2009, the NRC published a Notice of Hearing and Opportunity 

to Petition for Leave to Intervene and Order Imposing Procedures for Access to Sensitive 

Unclassified Non-Safeguards Information and Safeguards Information for Contention 
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Preparation on a Combined License for Callaway 2.  74 Fed. Reg. 6,064 (Feb. 4, 2009).  On 

April 6, 2009, MoPSC filed its Petition now before the Board.   

IV. The Petition For Admission As An Interested State Should Be Granted 

The Commission’s regulations allow an interested State to participate in a hearing as a 

non-party.  10 C.F.R. § 2.315(c).  Under Section 274(l) of the Atomic Energy Act, the State in 

which a proposed facility will be located has the right to participate in that facility’s licensing 

proceedings.  42 U.S.C.A. § 2021(l) (West 2009).  Commission regulations require, however, 

that each State requesting to participate designate a single representative for the hearing.  10 

C.F.R. § 2.315(c).  Because Callaway 2 will be located in Missouri and because MoPSC has 

asserted that it will be the State’s representative for this proceeding,2 AmerenUE supports 

MoPSC’s admission as an interested State. 

V. The Petition For Discretionary Intervention Should Be Denied 

To be admitted as a party in this proceeding, MoPSC must demonstrate standing and 

plead at least one admissible contention.  10 C.F.R. § 2.309(a).  Even when a petitioner requests 

discretionary intervention, which eliminates the requirement to establish standing to intervene as 

a matter of right if certain other factors are satisfied, an admissible contention is still required.  

Andrew Siemaszko, CLI-06-16, 63 N.R.C. 708, 719 (2006); Pacific Gas and Electric Co. (Diablo 

Canyon Nuclear Power Plant, Units 1 and 2), CLI-02-16, 55 N.R.C. 317, 346 (2002).  As 

MoPSC states explicitly in its Petition, it “has no contentions to file respecting Callaway Unit 2.”  

Petition at 2.  Therefore admission of MoPSC as a discretionary intervenor would be 

inappropriate. 

                                                 
2 See Petition at 1. 
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VI. Conclusion 

For all of the foregoing reasons, the Board should grant MoPSC’s Petition to participate 

in this proceeding as an interested State, but the Board should deny MoPSC’s request for 

discretionary intervention. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
/Signed (electronically) by Michael G. Lepre/ 
______________________________________ 
Jay E. Silberg 
Michael G. Lepre 
Stefanie M. Nelson 
PILLSBURY WINTHROP SHAW PITTMAN LLP 
2300 N Street, NW  
Washington, DC  20037-1128 
Tel.  (202) 663-8000 
 

  Counsel for Union Electric Company d/b/a AmerenUE 
  

May 1, 2009 
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